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PROCEEDINGS:
MR. ROBINSON:  Welcome to the CAG meeting.  My name is Joe Robinson, and I am the chair.  We have had a slight delay, but we will bring the meeting to order.  Kay, do you want to conduct the agenda review?

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  My name is Kay Wallis, and I am very pleased to be the facilitator for this July meeting of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Community Advisory Group.  Welcome, everyone.  We are going to do a quick agenda review and process review and have a special recognition as a part of our opening activities, and then we will get on to the business of the meeting.  

Please help yourself, if you have not already, to refreshments at the back of the room.  They are brought to us courtesy of Brook Street and Ms. Carolyn Graves and an anonymous donor.  In the back of the room you will also find an agenda and numerous handouts that pertain to the content of the meeting.  Please make sure you get that.  

I would also like to call your attention to two sign in sheets.  One is at the back table.  That is for our community members.  If you have not signed up before make sure you get your name and contact information in there, mailing list, review changes, anything like that.  And then there is another clipboard that should be circulating up at the front, and that is for CAG members only to please initial your attendance this evening.  

As your facilitator, it is my focus purely to keep us on topic and on time.  Although I am very    I am not uninterested in the meeting proceedings; I am disinterested.  And I will not be contributing in any way to the content, but I am paying very much attention to the process.  So let's look at our agenda.  It is an important tool for keeping us on time and on topic.  

After the opening activities we have, actually, a slight change.  Instead of the DTSC update going first, we will enjoy the Cherokee Simeon Ventures update first, and that will be done not by Mr. Doug Mosteller but by Mr. Tom Kambe and Ms. Michelle King.  And after they have given that presentation we will then have our DTSC update with Ms. Barbara Cook and Karen Toth.  

Following those two updates we will have the joint question and answer periods where both members of the CAG and the public will be able to request questions about any of those representatives.  That will be followed by a short break, and then we will go directly into the Toxics Committee update led by Dr. Esposito, Ms. Shipman, and Ms. LaPierre.  That will be followed by our public comment period, and then we will move into the committee updates from the CAG committees.  We will close our meeting with approval of prior meeting minutes, reviewing any question slips from prior meetings, and any other general wrap up.  

There is a couple of process points that I just want to review quickly.  Those of you who have attended before may be familiar with them by now.  A couple of things that have helped us keep things flowing and keep things going in a timely manner, we have asked both CAG and audience members, when you think about perhaps contributing a comment or a question we will ask that you keep it to about two minutes or so.  That just helps us ensure that we hear from the most people possible in the time we have.  I do have a timer which is less and less necessary as people become a lot more aware of what two minutes looks and sounds like.  But the timer is here in case we need help with that.  

If something comes up that cannot be adequately addressed in the two minute general timeframe we do have something over here that might be helpful which is our action item list.  So if something comes up that just needs more attention that we don't have tonight, we can capture it here on the action item list.  This is also a list when we are going to get recorded anything that someone brings up that we want to make sure there is follow up action and will assign both a person and a time line to that item.  Perhaps something is raised that needs to be referred to someone else, a committee, someone outside who is participating tonight.  That could all be recorded up on the action item list so it doesn't get lost.  So two minute time limit for people for their comments and questions, the action item list, and then we do have some green question slips that are available at the back of the room for audience members and CAG members.  You should see them on most of the tables.  

These are not required in any way, but they are a useful way if you are thinking about a question or comment to jot down and organize your thoughts.  Then in the case that for whatever reason we don't have time to get to all of the questions and comments we can get them on the green slips and they will be submitted to the CAG's secretary, Ms. Graves, and we can make sure that the question or comment gets to the appropriate party, whoever that is.  

So we have the action list, we have the agenda, we have a two minute time limit and the use of the question slips to help us with our process.  If there are no questions about the agenda or about the process, I will ask our chair to handle the item of special recognition.  

MR. ROBINSON:  It is a fun duty, a slightly sad duty too.  I don't know if all of you know Diane Fowler, the public participation specialist for DTSC.  She is retiring at the end of the month.  And we wanted to take the time to have a special recognition of Diane and all of her work for the CAG.  When I started with the CAG in the end of    the beginning of 2005 I remember meeting Diane and thinking she is such a nice lady.  I wonder what she does.  Over the years we found out.  She organized the CAG and patiently guided us in all of our efforts and all of our ups and downs.  

So we put together some gifts for Diane.  And in case the CAG had driven Diane to drink we wanted to make sure we had it, and we were busy growing flowers too.  Would you like to say something?  Put you on the spot. 

MS. FOWLER:  I would like to shake everyone's hand.

MS. PADGETT:  I remember my first meeting of Diane when they came over to the office of Kray Cabling.  She came with Nancy Cook, and it was before the CAG was formed.  It was when DTSC was first taking over the site.  And we weren't very nice.  And she and Nancy smiled through it.  

MS. FOWLER:  White knuckle is more like it.

MS. PADGETT:  And we came to really appreciate not only her finesse but also the empathy that she had for what we were going through as a community.  And her skills came through far and above anything we could have hoped for or expected when we went through the turmoil in forming the CAG.  All of us really miss Ethel, and I think that we came to appreciate her tenacity, and Diane found a way to find balance in what it was Ethel wanted to have done and what we, the community, needed to get done.  And it was just a tremendous beginning.  And it is just continued all along.  

We have been able to pick up the phone when we needed her, and we have tried not to abuse that and we are really going to miss you.  You have really been there for us over and over.

MS. FOWLER:  Thank you very much.

MS. WALLIS:  As was mentioned, we are switching the order of the updates, so I will turn it over to Mr. Tom Kambe for the Cherokee Simeon Ventures update.

MR. KAMBE:  Thank you.  From a technical side Michelle King will do the talking.  And from my side two things.  I see the Department of Public Health is not here tonight, so I will presume you are going to have them in August.  We would like to confirm we could set up a radiological session for September that is going to take some time, and we need to put together a presentation.  I would like a commitment for September.  Then I think in talking just briefly to DTSC I think they would like to put together a program on CEQA and CEQA processing as it will relate to this project.  

But, again, we have to commit some people's time, and it will probably involve the City, the City's involvement with the CEQA review.  The bigger one I need to get scheduled is the one with the radiological.

MR. ROBINSON:  Do you want that in the next meeting? 

MR. KAMBE:  We have the Department of Public Health coming in August.  So we would set that for September.  But I would like to confirm that to make sure we get everybody here.

MR. ROBINSON:  Sounds fine. 

MR. KAMBE:  In October we'll probably put together a review of CEQA.  That is something that Barbara may talk to you more about and the City of Richmond to coordinate something.

MS. PADGETT:  Your mic is not working.

MR. KAMBE:  You heard me.  There it is.  It is ready for Michelle, so I will step back at this point. 

MS. KING:  Hello.  Thank you.  Can you hear me?  Thank you for having me here tonight to give the update on the technical activities.  The main part of my update is to just inform everyone of what is going on in the excavation of the PCB/VOC area or site.  As most of you are aware, by the last CAG meeting the DTSC approved the RAW, that long waited approval.  The following week we initiated the proper activities to Hall (inaudible) Rose and get fencing set up and clear out the vegetation.  

We started excavation work on the 23rd of June, and we were excavating for two days' worth of work.  We hauled off about 50 truckloads of soil, of hazardous soil, with PCBs and VOCs.  And then the excavator broke down.  But in the meantime of the excavator breaking down, we were in the process or had been in the process of finding a class two landfill that will meet the needs for the project and in particular we have been awaiting some insurance certificate requirements to make sure that the materials go to the appropriate landfill that we are comfortable with.

So the excavators there are the primary reason why we haven't been working is because of getting the clarification on ultimate landfill, where the non haz soil will go to.  We are hoping to start up activities next week, but since we don't really know the schedule today DTSC will be providing an update, an e mail update once we do have the start date informed of the work.  

For the work that has been done to date we have collected some conformation samples along some of the western walls of the excavations, and they have all come up significantly below cleanup levels.  I don't recall the maximum concentrations detected, but PCBs I know that were concerned were all below the PRG .22.  

In terms of the air monitoring data, we did air monitoring during the preparation and setup activities and also in the first couple of days of the work, and dust concentrations were all well below the action levels.  And we also did chemical specific analyses for PCBs, VOCs, selected metals and pesticides and none of those compounds have been detected at all in the sampling done to date. 

What is remaining on the excavation work is we have about 900 tons of non hazardous soil to go off site and about seven truckloads of hazardous soil to go off site.  We'll do the confirmation sampling to verify cleanup was done.  And if we meet the cleanup objectives then the hole will be backfilled and the site will be restored and we will move on until we do the soil gas sampling.  That's where we stand on the RAW.  

Another topic to address jointly with DTSC, but I will introduce it.  Because I know beryllium is a big topic of interest right now.  And we did have a look at the beryllium data, primarily, really, in response to the letter that the CAG wrote regarding the historical site assessment report.  And Dorinda so kindly summarized the beryllium data and the extent in Building 80, and really those data are quite similar to the data at the rest of the site.  In general the concentrations that are found are within typical background concentrations in the RAW in the Bay Area.  

There was a DTSC study published on background concentrations of metals at air force bases, and with that what they call the 95th percentile background level of beryllium is 1.1 milligram per kilogram.  The bulk of the concentrations at the site are less than that value.  And in particular those in the vicinity are former Building 80.  

Also the Lawrence Berkeley Lab background study where the concentration of beryllium in the background soil is also about 1.1.  So with that we feel that concentrations at the site, there has been, I think, 530 plus soil samples collected and analyzed from the site for beryllium.  So with that I would like to comment further.

MS. COOK:  What I would like to add is that I recognize that one of the things that exist here is what we commonly refer to as the CSLS table, which was our screening levels that have been developed by the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment, which is the sister agency of DTSC as part of the California Environmental Protection Agency.  And they have established two standards, one being for total beryllium and the other one being for beryllium oxide.  What we are trying to do is talk to the parties who established this because there is no recognized test method for beryllium oxide.  And thus    or even the ones that may have been used in some of the manufacturing processes.  They don't go down to the standard that has been laid out in the screening levels.  

So we are trying to understand what the base of the screening number is and how we can do a comparison number that doesn't have a test method attached to it and just try to get a little information.  So we are asking    we will hope to be able to get back to you next month.  It is just that it is the summertime, and it is hard to get hold of people in the office at this point in time so we can gather a little more information with regards to the standards established by the screening level.  

I would also like to recognize it is a screening level, and all a screening level is meant to do is to highlight something that needs to be looked at further, and then a risk assessment needs to take that into account.  So we are going to go and try to talk to them and try to work through this, and Kimi has been out this month as well.  So we just need the month to be able to tie up the loose ends as to what the (inaudible) number means as well as the information that is there.  But, again, it seems to be less than the screening levels that are there.  With that I guess I would like to move into my part of the presentation if that is no problem.

MS. PADGETT:  Barbara, you just said it is less than the screening levels that are there.  I got lost there. 

MS. COOK:  I'm sorry.  You're right.  It is not less than.  The background concentrations, it is typical of what the background concentrations are that we are finding based on other sides that the Department has done state wide.  We are finding the studies to be 1.1 as far as the studies done by Lawrence Berkeley Livermore Labs.

MR. BLUM:  Military bases?

MS. COOK:  Yes.  As part of that information and part of that they went out and collected a lot of information to get a better understanding of what type of metals exist statewide and a lot of issues.  So they did very comprehensive studies which DTSC oversaw and actually approved.  But, again, OEHHA has established two screening numbers, one for total beryllium and one for beryllium oxide.  There is not a test method    my chemist in my department is saying there is no proof test method for beryllium oxide.  So we need to go back and speak to the beryllium    Dr. Page.  I forgot what Page's last name is    to speak with him about, okay, what was it that was here.  We just need to get a little better understanding of what he did and why he did it.  Okay.  And I hope to accomplish that within the next 30 days.  

Within my presentation, the biggest thing that I would like to highlight is that the Department has completed the removal at Harbor Way South.  The excavation has been completed and the site has been repaved.  We have not received    of course we haven't received that report yet that just happened.  So hopefully within the next month we will receive that report and hopefully finalize it quickly.  

Everything else is kind of moving along at the same pace.  The UC Richmond Field Station, talking about what additional work needs to be done, we are Marina Bay, Area T.  I think we hope to probably approve that draft amendment probably in the very near future, and the five year review of the sampling.  We will send out a work notice associated with that sampling.  That has to have a five year review.  

I should say that at Zeneca, which we didn't bring up, they didn't do the additional sampling which we discussed, but because of the protocol of doing that analysis that sampling    those analyses have not yet happened.  So hopefully within the next 30 days that sampling activity will take place.  And everything else is basically moving along at the same snail pace it feels like.  But it is moving in a forward direction.  

What I wanted to cover tonight, one last thing, Dr. Clark, at last month's meeting you brought up a discussion of rising sea level.  And I want to make you aware of the fact that there are two agencies, kind of regional governmental agencies, that are actively working on this project.  

And if you would like, I would like to get you in contact with them if you have an interest in them.  One of them is the BCDC organization with Will Travis, and the other one is the ABAG organization, the regional government organization.  If this is something that you would like to have interest in, I can give you names of contacts on that.  I will send you an e mail message tomorrow to do that.  Okay.  

The topic that I wanted to discuss and I will    I will be the first to tell the three of you that gave me a pointer    and I am probably considerably (inaudible).  I wanted    we have received questions and comments on the EnviroStor system.  And I just wanted to make sure that we are thinking that maybe people are not aware of certain things    buttons that are available for you to look at and how it works out.  

So I just wanted to walk through this to let you understand what the information is here so that you are aware of that.  This is the Department's public webpage.  If you have comments on the content of the webpage, how you can organize it, please feel free to provide it.  We recognize that our webpage needs a lot of work.  With regards to the layout I am out of luck because that is dictated by the Governor's office.  But we are hoping we can figure out some different tabs because, you know, maneuvering through web pages is a lot of work.  We are actually finding it is easier to Google than our webpage.  We acknowledge that and would like to improve it.  Okay.  

So what would happen is here there are two ways to look at trying to find EnviroStor.  This is one over there.  The other one is what is in "My Community."  So either one of those links will take you to this page.  

Within this page, what I want to make sure that you understand is this is going to be basically the basics, so we are going to find sites that are the NPL sites, the (inaudible), the voluntary cleanup sites, the cleanup sites, the permit and corrective action sites.  But it does not necessarily mean that it is every site that we have information on. 

So I want you to recognize that you have to go back over to the "Tools" site.  There is a basic search.  There is advance searches.  If you have got a lot of computer knowledge you can probably do a lot more with getting this information here.  But please understand that there is a lot of things that you can go back and look at how to get into here as well as you have the ability to generate reports based on senate districts, assembly districts, land use restrictions, permit restrictions.  You can actually pull reports out of this report.  Okay.  What you can then do is you can actually do it by general category.  So we type in the name "The City of Richmond."  Yeah.  Why don't we do it by    let's get the listing first.

MS. TOTH:  Just in case, there is a handout that actually has just pages so you have something that you can take with you if you have kind of questions later.

MS. COOK:  What this does is gets you the comprehensive listing of the sites that fall into that category.  If you want to see the sites that we have done all evaluations on we are going to have to go back and do a different report that uses more advanced tools than this.  

So this is going to lay out we have a number of American Standard sites.  We have the (inaudible).  We have Carson properties.  We have all of the sites that are here that are listed here.  So why don't you    you want to pick up Marina Bay?

MS. TOTH:  Actually, can we flip back and go to the map?  I think that is kind of useful to see what that looked like.  

MS. COOK:  This map basically shows a graphic representation of the sites.  You can go back and pull up Water Board sites to add to the map.  You can add anything else that we have.  Underground tanks.  They are basically sites that are regulated with underground tanks.  Think about it.  Every gas station that exists probably will show up here as a (inaudible) site because every gas station had an underground tank.  So this can graphically show all of the sites that exist in the Richmond area.  

You can put your name on a dot.  It is going to show you the name of the project, what type of information it might have in regards to that site.  So this is one way of trying to help get a better understanding of what information may exist in the community.  It is    I apologize.  I should have made a phone call today just to get an idea of how many people actually go onto the EnviroStor, but it is thousands of hits on a weekly basis.

MS. PADGETT:  I am half of them.  

MS. TOTH:  That is Sherry's. 

MS. COOK:  So we can pull up the Marina Bay project from there, and this is the webpage that exists here.  What you are going to find here is that you can actually pull up a map of the Marina Bay project, get an understanding of it.  The top part is going to give you some idea of where it is located, is it an NPL site, how is the Department working on the project, is it a volunteer area cleanup project, something that has an order on it.  

What it also has is the ability, if you have a question on the site, you can either click on Nancy's name or the project officer's name who is Tony Latar.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible).  

MS. COOK:  We are working on putting that part together.  The cleanup status is    it is going to be an active site.  Why don't we go down to everything else before the community involvement page?  We have our land use covenants on the Marina Bay project.  So this is actually all of the areas that are covered under a land use covenant.  If you click on one of them you will actually be able to pull up the actual land use covenant documents and be able to read it.

MR. THOMPSON:  How far back?

MS. COOK:  How far back?  I am desperately trying to get every piece of paper and document in the area.  So I have documents in here in the 1980s. 

MR. THOMPSON:  Can you check with the County?  

MS. COOK:  I can only upload documents that are associated with my department.  The Department is not going to upload documents that other agencies are responsible for because this is our    because I don't have any control over what that document is, whether it is the final document, whether it is the approved document.  And we can only control what is our documents.

MR. THOMPSON:  In reality you really don't know how many businesses or what kind of type of business is in these areas and what the level of toxicity that has been buried there.

MS. COOK:  What it does do is if the Department was involved in the site, whether we did an evaluation on the site or whether or not we got information about that site and reviewed and approved that information, that information will be here.  That information should include a description of as part of    I want you to go down to the types of reports.  

For example, go to "Completed Activities."  You are going to look all the way down at the bottom, so this is basically saying that we have a report on this property since 1981.  That discusses cultural resources.  That was provided to DTSC as part of our activities that we were given.  So I    every final report that the Department has, it's there.  It is    we are trying to upload it into here.  So it is property specific and it    whatever information I have. 

So I am going to    I have a feasibility study.  I have a Remedial Investigation report.  A Remedial Investigation report is going to describe what business activities existed there, what information we have based on waste materials that were used, what type of practices they had, what soil sampling, groundwater sampling, or whatever existed at that point in time that was done as part of that 1987 report that is available to review.  So these reports that are listed in this one, they show the final report that was approved by DTSC.  

MS. ABBOTT:  They are not abstracts in the report? 

MS. COOK:  Why don't we follow up the reports?  This is a report that got approved before the Department kind of put some size restrictions on it. 

MS. TOTH:  This is only three megabytes.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Are you limited (inaudible)?

MS. COOK:  Yes and no.  This is a 147 page report.  So it is all there.  What is limited now is an understanding that there is a lot of people who still have dial up.  And if you give them a report that has more than 10 megabytes their computer will crash before they open up the document.  And they get very upset about that.  So the Department has instituted a policy that we will not upload any document    we will upload all documents; however, the document may be broken up into segments.  

And I understand it is frustrating, and I guarantee you my staff is furious with the process of trying to figure out how to break up a report at 10 megabytes.  It is very difficult to do.  But it recognizes the Department has an obligation to provide information to all citizens of California or anybody who has an interest in it.  So it recognizes at this point in time that dial up exists, and this is the best way of making sure (inaudible).

MS. PADGETT:  One way the University dealt with it that is very appreciated is that they loaded both forms.  They load the full document, and then on a couple of documents they broke them up.  So they have the whole document for those who can download the whole thing, and they have the megabytes right next to it.  And then they also have the broken up documents. 

MS. COOK:  Okay.  We can go back and see if that is an option that they will allow us to do.  Every staff person I have fights this every step.  I will show you how crazy it is.  If I have a 10.1 megabyte document they have to break it up.  So they are going, "Isn't there a little flexibility?"  And they are saying no.  But, you know, thank you for the suggestion.  I want to see if that is something that we can look at as an option.

MR. DOTSON:  Are there hard copies that exist of all of these documents?

MS. COOK:  There are hard copies.  There are hard copies, but what it does do    the hard copies are in my file room here.  Or if you are looking at a project that is in the Sacramento office they are in the Cal Center office.  So the hard paper copy document typically exists in the DTSC regional office.  And in some cases, especially if you are in the Cal Center office, that is an enormous drive to have to drive all the way up to Sacramento if you are in the Clovis office, in Clovis or Fresno or something like that.  So having the ability to access this has, in the Department's opinion, has provided a lot more information and a lot more information to upgrade to a number of people.  

And it is also recognizing, and I think to some extent, the desire to move more to an electronic database and to eliminate using the paper because that is using a natural resource that we would rather figure out how to reduce.  A lot of us are a little old fashioned and having a hard time moving from paper to electronic, but it is something that we have to learn to work through.  

So this is a listing of activities.  It is listed by if there is an area, for example, Marina Bay has been broken up into different operable units or areas, so it breaks it up based on that category.  And within further down there is a description of what each of those are, so you can pull up Area F and it is going to give you information in regards to what Area F is.  It is there.  

Please, you know, feel free to pop buttons, hit buttons to see what opens up and what information comes in there because there is a lot of information that exists.  With regards to properties within it it is also going to tell you what the future activities are.  So you are going to be looking at for Area FM we have a completion report.  We expect to have it completed in 2010.  So it lays out the Department's expectation of finishing that phase of the work.  

Within the site history section it is going to give you an idea of the information we have with regards to what we believe the site was used for, but there is also another section that is going to tell you what the contaminants that were used that exist on the site.  So right up there what we feel are the contaminants.  

And the next section over it is going to tell you where we are going to find it.  We are going to find it in the soil for this area.  We haven't really found it in groundwater.  We have found it in other places.  Okay.  So all of this    there is a lot of information here.  The completed activity section only shows the final documents.  It does not show any interim documents that might exist.  And that is why we can go up to    is there anything else that you wanted to show up here?

MS. TOTH:  Just that you can sort.  If you are looking for a specific area you can click on any of these blue at the top of the headings.  You can sort by that.  You can sort by day on Marina Bay.  You have the areas.  And anything that has a blue line under it will take you to another page or take you to a document.  So anything that looks like what people call hyperlinks takes you somewhere.  So the blue things are very important.

MS. COOK:  The last link that we wanted to show you that doesn't clearly show itself as being a link, and it has caused some of the confusion, is what is called a community involvement link.  What the Department has done is it    the Department has basically a policy right now that for the most part a document that is drafted is not viewable on the public Webpage.  

Now, we have a lot of high interest sites where we have made a conscious decision that we will upload these draft documents based on the level of interest.  So if you go to the community involvement link, this is what you are going to see.  You are going to see these fact sheets that we have already issued, the public notices, the draft documents, the public participation.  Do you have any draft documents here? 

MS. TOTH:  Not a draft, the Remedial Action Plan. 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  What about comments? 

MS. COOK:  Comment letters?  No. they are not there.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Is there a way to compare if the Toxics Committee had comments on a particular report?  You really can't tell. 

MS. COOK:  Do you upload any of your comment letters?  No. 

MS. TOTH:  It is actually when we do finalize the response to comments, when we finalize the response to comments we actually put copies of all of the comment letters in there as well as our summaries.  Yes, it is in the "response to comments" document.

MS. COOK:  They are looking at an RI report. 

MS. TOTH:  Okay. 

MS. COOK:  If you have written comments on an RI report or a risk assessment, no, those documents are not uploaded. 

MS. TOTH:  I am sorry.  I was talking during the public comment period.

MS. COOK:  So why don't we go to the Zeneca one to be able to show the level of    the level of draft documents that exists.  These are all the monthly reports that have been submitted.  These are all of the weekly reports, these are draft reports, these are all of the reports, and these are ones that Sherry has outlined.  And Lynn actually will    joins you very strongly on the fact that she has to break these up.

MS. PADGETT:  As an example, what I was suggesting is that as an example that first quarter groundwater monitoring report that    that first quarter groundwater monitoring report that is broken up into parts one through six, you can see the document size off to the right, could be listed up there as 48 megabytes, whatever the number is, 40 megabytes, as the whole.  And then if someone wanted to just download the parts they can download the parts but have the option to download the whole thing.  Because you can imagine, as a member of the public, what I am doing when I am downloading it is searching through it.  So I am doing a search on the entire document.  And I can't do a search on the entire document.  I have got to do a search on six parts. 

MS. COOK:  Thank you for the suggestion.  We will go back, but I can't make any guarantees.

MS. PADGETT:  Another comment about this page.  There is just a little inconsistency recently with the prior page, the public page with the monthly updates being loaded on the first page and not being at the community page.  So the most recent update got posted to a different page. 

MS. COOK:  I want to see how many of these I can move over to the "completed activities."  We just need to figure out what fits into what category.  But I am just    the importance of this one is to recognize that when you go into it there is a lot of    there is a lot of information there.  There is a lot of information that you can have access to.  And sometimes people are    sometimes people will call us up and they are saying such and such a report is    they can't find the report.  And that is because they are looking in the "completed" section, and they really need to go back to the "community involvement" section, and I apologize.  I apologize that I don't have the ability to connect those. 

And that is one of the reasons why we wanted to do this discussion today is so I could do it in person because I don't have any way to discuss it as part of the    as part of the computer setup here.  Just for your information, this network and this computer program process is done by an outside vendor for the    by department, so we don't have staff internally who have the ability to make these modifications.  We have to work through it, and we have to make modifications to the computer.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  May I make a suggestion if there was like an FAQ or some such thing on    tips of how to navigate the site, "If you can't find it here, look there." 

MS. COOK:  Yes.  We agree.  

MS. BEGIN:  Claudette Begin of CUE, clerical union of Richmond Field Station. 

MS. TOTH:  Barbara?  

MS. COOK:  Yeah?  What do you have?

MS. TOTH:  This is the EnviroStor home page, and there are some tutorials, frequently asked questions on this page as well, glossary. 

MS. COOK:  I will also, for your information as part of this, the Water Board is also in the process   have gotten a contractor with this same vendor, so they are in the process of trying to update their geo tracker document form so it kind of mirrors more along this line.  So as a way of just to let you know that that will being coming shortly.  And I will probably announce it when that happens.  But like my office, like    Mr. Thompson, it takes a long time to go back into historical records and upload documents in there.  So there is a lot of information here, and we are trying to develop links to tie our database together, but it is also important for us to get all of the information up as soon as we can.  It is a very resource intensive effort.  That is all I want to cover as part of my presentation tonight.  If there is any additional questions on the EnviroStor system...

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  We will open up the Q&A session for questions for Ms. Cook and for Mr. Kambe and for Ms. King on either the DTSC or the Cherokee Simeon presentations.  And I see a hand, Dr. Clark.

MR. CLARK:  Thank you.  First of all, on the Cherokee Simeon presentation, I am having a little problem in accepting that as a factual reality for many reasons.  First of all, we've already went through the whole discussion about the fallacies of the way that health risk and health impacts are being done on our community as an invalid process already.  And so here you come back with this report on beryllium and other chemicals, and you say that they are within whatever term that you used, but basically safe levels or below any levels of concern, you know, which is not very convincing at all because you don't know anything about the health conditions of the people in the community for now in the past, period.  

And so for you to be able to say that there is no negative health effects is just unrealistic.  The other point too is that you talk about background levels of beryllium and say that you know it is within background levels.  Well, I am a little confused on that because if, say, background levels are already one, just as an example, and then I come and release something else, some more of the same substance into the same spot, well, seems to me that is going to add up.  It ain't going to be the same as it was without that that you added into that.  

So if you follow what I am saying, so that ain't quite accurate what you are saying.  Okay.  The other    so those particular points right there in regard to your comments, in regard to the DTSC, Department of Toxic Substance Control stuff, there was a couple of points.  You did mention, Barbara, that I was concerned about the rising waters, tide levels.  And I am glad you got back on that.  But the other concern, too, that was raised through the    that I raised to the Toxics Committee and I believe the Toxics Committee, Sherry had asked DTSC about it, and we got possibly two experimental incinerators operating at the U.C. Berkeley Field Station there.  

And I believe the response was that from DTSC that that is not true, that it is no experimental incinerators operating there now or, I believe, never was, and there are no plans to do so, you know.  Well, you know, I don't buy that argument either because of the fact that the sources that I got the information from went back to their source.  And I was told today that a gentleman at Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Scott Luce, I believe, confirmed that there is an incinerator operating at the UC Field Station.  

Now you need to check into that.  I don't want to play no word games like a lot of agencies and companies do, "This is not an incinerator, this is a boiler or furnace," or some type of other foolishness.  The bottom line is that if they are burning something over there and releasing emissions into the environment, that is an incinerator, period, and you need to find the information and let us know. 

MS. COOK:  And the last point, yes, we will be following with the Air District to understand what Air District permits exist at the Field Station.  And we will hopefully get back to you next month on that issue.  On the other issue, the problem that exists with regards to what my agency is responsible and what my agency requires as part of the risk assessment, it is a guidance document that is established by the USEPA region    by USEPA that we must follow.  It is a mathematical model.  I recognize that it has a lot of issues and concerns that you have raised are not folded into that model.  And that is not    we don't have the ability to modify the model to take that into account.  

But a lot of the issues and a lot of the assessments and the evaluations that the Department of Public Health does helps us address the concerns that you have raised as a way of doing that.  And I am hoping that next month the Department of Public Health can come and gave their presentation, and we can go back and look at those issues as part of that.

MS. WALLIS:  A quick follow up.

MR. THOMPSON:  Just one point of clarification.  Hopefully the Department of Health or whoever has some correct information that    valid information that they will present to us at the next meeting, but I don't think that they are going to present an answer to those questions at the next meeting or any other meeting, period, any time soon.  But you can check and see.  

So what I am saying is that if you do not have the answers to those questions or the Department of Toxic Substance or the Health Department, whoever you need to consult with, seems to me like you should, as an agency, should write up these flaws in the process and forward those on to whoever is the head of your department so they will understand that, "Look, this process that you are being given to follow is flawed," and they need to address it.  

Because it should not be standing like that because the community is put at a risk as a result of it, and your agencies are there and getting paid to supposedly protect the public which is not happening in many ways.  So at least you could write a note to your director and say that this process is not    is flawed and point it out like we are learning out right now and so that, hopefully, they will do something about it.  

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Dr. Clark.  I see a hand from another CAG member, Ms. Abbott.

MS. ABBOTT:  With regard to the    Dr. Clark's question of the sea level rise and the BCDC, it is true that they did produce a report and maps on parts of San Francisco Bay and what it might look like with a, whatever, with a sea level rise.  They did not, however, actually do the part of Richmond that we are talking about.  And if you look at their website they do have their maps up and they do have their reports up, but they do not cover this part in their maps.  

So I would like to know if DTSC would formally contact that agency and request that they do the same level of report that would cover this very contaminated area that is right there so close to the shoreline. 

MS. COOK:  I will call and talk to the staff that are doing this.  The other thing that they are doing, they recognize that the report only goes to a one meter rise over the next 400 years.  However, they also have to modify that because, in reality, they should be looking at a high tide with a surge issue during a storm event.  So they are doing that assessment now.  So that is going to take a little longer time to be able to pull that together. 

MS. ABBOTT:  Yes.  They do need to do that.  They also need to look at earthquake stuff and all of that.  But my point is that the study they did is not complete.  It did not include any of the south shoreline areas.  It was only the other parts of the shoreline.  It did not include this area where these properties are. 

MS. COOK:  Okay.  I will go back to them.  I was under the impression that they had evaluated the entire San Francisco Bay.  Because, for example, in the Petaluma area Highway 12 is all under water.  And a number of other areas, all of the South Bay is actually below sea level.

MS. ABBOTT:  They did the South Bay.  They did parts of the North Bay.  They did Point Richmond, the northbound shore area of Richmond, but they did not do the southern shore. 

MS. COOK:  Okay.  I will talk to Mr. Travis' staff.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito and then Ms. Padgett.  

DR. ESPOSITO:  I just wanted to return to the issue of beryllium oxide for a moment.  Beryllium oxide is the major high purity form in which beryllium is supplied commercially.  So there are analytic methods to determine, but it is the major form in which it is sold.  So hopefully the Department will look at it in other soil and water samples and will be able to find some analytic methods.  Thank you.

MS. COOK:  The problem    I mean, there may be manufacturing process techniques; however, one of the things that USEPA has done is established uniform approved test methods and information to assure consistency.  So it is a very major event to get approved methodology done.  So let us talk to OEHHA to find out what the issues are.  Maybe we can    there are a number of    a number of ways to evaluate and do assessment.  You know, it is not quite the same because there is, actually, a test method for the chromium versus chrome six, some assumptions that are made and things along that line.  But we need to go back and talk to OEHHA, and we need to understand what the basis was, why did he call it out and understand his methodology that he put together as part of his assessment.

MS. PADGETT:  I have just a couple of comments, one for Cherokee in the cleanup of the Lot One PCB/VOC area.  We understand now that the excavator broke down.  I have been contacted by several members of the community wondering what the holdup has been.  And I suggested, and I didn't know that we were waiting for samples to come back on the bottom and side of the pit, and depending on those samples then more work would either be done or the hole would be filled in.  Now I am understanding that we are waiting for the permit for the class two material as well as some insurance issues, and possibly we are waiting for that excavator to get fixed.  

If this    so now this is to DTSC.  If there are further delays or more information similar to that, it would be great if a note went out to the CAG to let us know what the status is. 

MS. COOK:  Yes.  I think we are making a commitment to do an e mail message to be able to give information of when our expectant date is going to start.  So we will let you know if there is any significant more delays.  Give us a week.  Hopefully by then the administrative paperwork process will catch up.  And, hopefully, they will start the work or sometime next week if the work is not going to start we will get back with another email message on our distribution list as to what is the cause of the delay.

MS. PADGETT:  Okay.  And on the EnviroStor Website, I want to encourage anyone who has not visited it to be sure to visit it.  I am a frequent user.  It is imperfect, but it is a lot better than the days when I used to take my copy machine, literally, and boxes of paper over to the DTSC office and spend days and days and days    I think everyone remembers when I lived there.  And this is much better than that time.  So I would encourage everyone to use it if you haven't.

MR. ROBINSON:  I had a question, actually, for Dr. King in regards to the excavator breaking down and also for DTSC perhaps.  Did the RAW anticipate how many cubic yards were going to be excavated?  And, as a practical matter, you listed 50 truck trips to date.  I think that is what you said.  And that might be 10 cubic yards to 20 cubic yards per truck.  And I am wondering, as a practical matter, do you excavate the test and you really don't know when the RAW is being written how much is going to be excavated, that sort of thing?  

MS. KING:  That is an excellent question, Joe.  Basically the RAW estimated about 1300 cubic yards of material to be excavated, and a cubic yard, which is what we call a cubic yard is (indicated) yardage when you draw the boxes that are shown in the RAW and you calculate the volume based on the depth for each square.  That is how you come up with the 1300 cubic yards.  

As a practical matter in the field, we have marked out with a surveyor those initial excavation limits so the contractor will be excavating to the edges of those boxes to the specified depths.  As the soil is off hauled, the trucks, basically in the end you end up with a final tonnage.  What's happened is we make calculated yardage based on the size of the excavation.  But it is a tonnage that ends up going to the landfill.  It is done by weight.  

And so that is why    and a truck is roughly 20 tons of soil, you know, and 13 cubic yards or so of soil.  So it is roughly half of the soil that has gone off site.  So you could say 20 times 50 trucks, it is a thousand tons of material.  In cubic yards, we have six, seven hundred yards of cubic material, so about half.

MS. WALLIS:  I would like to do a quick time check with the CAG.  We have gone about five minutes more than we had allocated for the question and answer period.  I did see a couple of additional hands, one from the CAG and at least one or two from the audience.  So how would you like to proceed with this portion of the agenda?  Okay.  So extend the Q&A for five more minutes.  And I am seeing mostly nods of heads.  All right.  So, Mr. Blum, we'll go next to you.  And then I see these two hands in the audience. 

MR. BLUM:  I would like to apologize for missing the last couple of CAG meetings, so I am a little bit behind.  But beryllium, we have been through a series of iterations of histories of the site.  And the early histories were    didn't include any of the uranium discussions that we have had now.  Beryllium has come to the fore.  And in trying to follow the emails and whatnot when I haven't been here, it sounds to me, and if somebody can give me a quick very brief history of how beryllium came to our attention I would love to hear it, because we keep peeling back the onion, and information only seems to come from CAG members.  

And I am wondering why that is when we are supposedly getting complete histories on the site.  Have we now gotten a complete picture of what was produced in the 80 buildings or whatever it was that were ground up before the CAG was formed, or are we still waiting for the next shoe to drop?  

I would love to get a thorough description from whoever has it, whether Zeneca has it and Cherokee Simeon can get it through Zeneca, of exactly what was produced in the different buildings.  And we seem to have to find this information ourselves.  And it is a little troubling to me.  So can somebody tell me how we found out about beryllium? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would love to tell you.  The subject of how we found out about beryllium, what that means for what the CAG has been doing and what it means for the investigation of this area that dates back to 1996, is the entire subject of the Tox Com report this evening and which will conclude with a number of recommendations on what we need to do in order to turn up the last card in the deck of information that is being held regarding this site.  

If we don't have a method to get all of the documents to DTSC or to some responsible party the CAG will be sitting here forever.  We are not likely to get the job done by the method that we have been proceeding.  

MR. BLUM:  Then let's just proceed, and we will get to that when we get to that.

MS. WALLIS:  The first hand here, please identify yourself for the transcriptionist.  

MS. BEGIN:  Claudette Begin from CUE associated with workers at Richmond Field Station.  So I have two things, two questions.  There are base studies that are being used to compare on the beryllium.  And I would like some clarification.  It seems to me as a layperson that the base studies have about as much neutrality as a report that was given many months ago, I think, about radiological exposures comparing contaminated sites to this site.  In other words, not a place that would not be contaminated.  Lawrence Livermore or the Berkeley Lab are not places that I would set up my organic garden. 

So it seems to me that an organic garden might be a more suitable baseline for what would be considered safe or standard.  So I would like clarification if these base studies are being used because the only when it's done because only contaminated sites have been tested.  

The second question is beryllium, maybe this will be covered in the Tox Com.  Is this something that would travel that workers or people at the Richmond Field Station or related sites would have to be concerned about, or is it something that is fairly contained? 

MS. COOK:  I am going to answer the question as it relates to the Lawrence Livermore or the Lawrence Berkeley study.  Lawrence Berkeley actually went out and gathered information from various locations.  And they didn't do this analysis based on the soils at their property.  They went back and looked at, I suspect in most cases when these are all done it was some graduate students who spent a lot of time going and collecting information based on different type of geological formations that exist in the San Francisco area, so it was looking at different soil classifications and going back and doing a research evaluation of what is typically found in that type of soil.  

It has been    in addition to being done by Lawrence Berkeley Labs it has been done by the UC system in Riverside.  So it is an analysis and study based on the information that is there.  With regards to the military bases, and I know this has been an issue that has been raised there, the issue of gathering and establishing background concentrations in levels that exist is a very comprehensive and could very well be a very expensive study to be done.  And who else better to be able to foot the bill in accordance with the standards overseen by USEPA and in this case the Department as well as to evaluate background analysis that they have used?  There are two or three different methodologies and, Adrianne, feel free to correct me if I am incorrect.  

But to calculate    to calculate background, yes.  Historically the argument that was made is that you had to go find a place where nobody    it was never used for anything.  Nobody used it for anything.  We    it is just a piece of property that was never used for anything.  And in reality you can never find that piece of property because you will have wind dispersion.  You don't know what the property was used for 50 years ago.  There are a whole number of reasons why you can't find that backyard location of what was there, you know.  So there is a lot of concerns along that line.  

So as a result of that there has now become a new background calculation that recognizes that you have to accept that.  So you    it ends up being a statistical analysis where you collect a lot of data, you put the data together, and you analyze that data to see if there can be breaks in the analysis of it.  So you have a lot of statisticians who are evaluating them to determine whether or not this is where the first break is.  And, you know, they usually have to (inaudible) blow it up.  I am getting a little old.  I can't see the breaks that they are seeing.  And you have statisticians arguing about this as part of the background calculations.  

So, one, you are not going to find a piece of property that everybody is going to agree probably didn't have    that didn't have anything or even if you did find one you are going to need more than one because this is a statistical analysis to make sure that you have enough data to be able to look at all of the different issues.  Now everybody in this room, I probably won't find anybody else in this room who is only five foot high or maybe five foot and a half on a good day, down to five foot.  But we are all slightly different and we all slightly have different issues.  So it ends up being a statistical analysis.  I hated statistics in college.  I still hate statistics in all of these issues.  But I rely on those statisticians and toxicologists who are helping me evaluate the data.

MS. WALLIS:  In the interest of time I would like to go to our next question.  You had a second part to your question, and Dr. Esposito has indicated that he would address it during the Tox Com session.  So we'll use this as the last question for our Q&A period.  Please identify yourself.  

MR. SCHNEPF:  My name is Donald Schnepf, S c h n e p f.  My question is about beryllium dust.  I saw references in some of the documents about beryllium dust which is very light, easily floats in the air.  I have experience with it as a machinist that machined pure beryllium.  And we had vacuum hoses at each tool bin.  So in our operation you never saw a beryllium chip.  Most of    through the nature of the metal of beryllium, when you machine it, most of it turns to dust, the chips you produce.  

I filled up a 55 gallon drum of beryllium chips, of beryllium dust.  And the contents of the drum were way less than the weight of the steel of the drum.  Now my question is when you were excavating here and you said there was no dust, you wouldn't even see this dust because it is so fine.  Was there any monitoring devices used to detect the presence of beryllium dust?  It's been very dry.  So that means the beryllium would float very easily in the air.  I think the beryllium areas of concern are not in the areas that we have done excavation. 

MS. KING:  I can answer that to some degree.  The area of doing the excavation, beryllium has not been identified as a chemical concern.  As I indicated, the concentrations of beryllium were generally at background levels.  But to answer your question about dust, what we are monitoring with regard to dust is we have four air monitors throughout    surrounding the excavation area.  And those are monitoring what we call total dust.  

So if anything that is airborne it will get effectively    if it passes the monitor it is sucked into the monitor and then counted.  We have one monitoring station that specifically is monitoring what we call PM10.  PM10 is what we call dust that is less than 10 micrometers in size.  So that particular station would move into whichever seems to be more downwind area.  So if there was a very, very fine dust, if it was airborne it would collect in our monitor.  So we would see it in the total dust measurements.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, then.  We will close the question and answer period and go on to a brief break that I will ask everyone to be back from at five after 8:00.  Thank you.  

(Recess.)

MS. WALLIS:  And now Dr. Esposito will continue with the Tox Com update report.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Before I begin, I really would like to suggest that as a matter of courtesy that those who have already spoken would remain with us for the rest of the program.  This evening we are going to be talking about principally the issue of beryllium that you have heard about but also our comments on the historical review of radiological uses at the Zeneca/Stauffer site.  

The Tox Com report this evening is going to come in several phases.  I am going to lead off, Sherry is going to provide further information, and then we will have a contribution from Dorinda Shipman and perhaps some comment by Adrianne LaPierre.  In the interests of time what I would like to suggest is that you hold your questions to the very end, because the way in which we have structured these presentations is that each of them will raise certain questions that are going to be responded to by the next speaker.  So the issues that may arise in your mind will probably be answered in the next talk.  

One of the issues that we have confronted is that with the historical review of radiological uses, the CAG learned for the first time that there was a building called Beryllium 80, which is the site of beryllium as well as uranium melting.  That building built in 1951 was demolished in about 1977, and we have absolutely no information whether that building was demolished and decommissioned with the appropriate oversight by the then AEC, GOE, or any other governmental agency as would have been appropriate.  

We have been concerned about the radiological activities at the site for a long time, and now we are turning our attention to the issue of beryllium which we first learned about its melting at the site in an emergency and on an expedited basis because beryllium is a toxic metal.  It is very lightweight, as we have already heard.  It spreads easily through the environment.  It is associated with at least three categories of disease.  

An acute exposure to it gives you an acute pneumonitis like pneumonia from which you may recover if you get away from the contaminant source.  Other individuals, about 4 percent of the population, will have an allergic response to beryllium, and this will eventually led to chronic beryllium disease.  And there are other maladies associated with exposure to beryllium.  And these include a variety of cancers including cancers of bone and cartilage as have been exhibited by individuals following the Big Dig in 2006… 2002.  We are now, with all others, 2002.  The echo in the room is excellent.  And we are now evaluating the extent of the beryllium data and the methods for its analysis as best we can.  I want to point out that beryllium poisoning is not a novel observation.  This is a reprint from Physics Today of July 1949.  The title is "Beryllium Poisoning."  "Production of beryllium in Europe, Italy, Russia, France, Germany and the U.S. was known to be a source of danger to workers and people in the vicinity for a long time.  And, of course, the production of beryllium increased dramatically during the war years because it is a component of nuclear weapons, atomic bombs in particular.  

"So in the community where beryllium was being melted or smelted or machined, the movement of beryllium through the air is quite different than it would have been if we were just living on the soil because these buildings have flues and furnaces which blow things about.  And some very important cases of beryllium manufacturing associated with disease have been shown to involve individuals a mile away from the site who had nothing to do with the industry involved.  Of course the beryllium workers are at much greater risk.  

Now, one of the things that the Department of Energy and parent form the AEC has been doing since 1996 is that they have a former workers medical surveillance program in which they have invited former employees at DOE and then AEC, nuclear weapons laboratories and their subcontractors to present themselves for medical exams to see whether or not they have been in any way affected by handling beryllium, uranium, plutonium, and any other weapon of nuclear weapons manufacture.  

So, to date, there have been 455,000 former employees examined.  In point of fact, 30 of them come from Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory, 35 to be exact.  They were former employees of Lawrence Berkeley Laboratory during the time when the Laboratory was producing plutonium.  So they have entered the program.  

Unfortunately    and other small contractors other than national labs.  Unfortunately Richmond    Stauffer Metals of Richmond employees have never been involved in this program.  And we would certainly hope that the Department of Toxic Substance and Control who now has knowledge or can have knowledge of at least 40 or so employees who were involved in beryllium melting and uranium melting will be made aware that this program exists.  And they can avail themselves of the federal government's attempt to assay their help and to offer them medical help as well as perhaps compensation for their disability if it is warranted.  

One of the aspects of this study which makes it so much easier to do than looking at individuals for injury due to exposure to radiation is that an individual who has been exposed to beryllium and has initiated the allergic response which will lead to severe disability can be detected by a simple blood test.  If you take a blood sample and you look at what happens to the lymphocytes of the sample, if they are beryllium they begin to proliferate.  

In point of fact, about 3 percent, that is, of the total of 37,000 individuals, former employees who have been exposed to beryllium show this effect.  If you want to read the recent news at Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory it has been established that a machine shop that was being retrofitted, previously used for beryllium machining, became the source of exposure to workers of beryllium dust that remained on the rafters and had been forgotten about.  And these individuals have contracted both acute    the acute form of this disease as well as the chronic one, which is serious because it progresses to serious respiratory disease and cancers, et cetera.  

Now, in the handout we provided information that any individuals, be they employee, former Stauffer employees, individuals who lived near Seaport Village or at Seaport Village, the Harborfront Tract denizens, and Marina Bay Village should avail themselves to inform these individuals.  

What is happening at the Department of Energy and the former NEC is they have broadened their scope of interest because they've now discovered that miles away from their installations where they contract for work people have gotten ill.  So this is the time to address the DOE.  The chief is Glen Podonsky, and his email is given in the handout.  

So now I would like to turn the program over to    the report over to Sherry to tell us a little more about the Beryllium 80 Building.

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you, Michael.  Carolyn, I have a laser pointer here.  And I don't want to get you with it.  Everyone remembers the Tox Com logo.  It is the "out of the box" for 2008.  If you remember it is symbolic of where we wanted to go this year.  The box represents a lot of the more familiar regulations that DTSC, the Department of Energy, Cal EPA, USEPA all work within.  And we want to encourage all of the regulatory agencies to look at ways they can help us and assist us in overseeing this site within the regulatory guidelines that they are bound by but also getting perhaps out of their comfort zone.  

This is the overview of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area so that everybody has an idea of where they are.  These are all of the neighborhoods that surround the site, and these are many of or most of the sites that we oversee.  Here are the two sites that we focus on primarily.  And here is the Zeneca site.  This is a document from the first cleanup order from the Water Board.  Actually it is not from the cleanup order from the Water Board.  It is in response to the cleanup order.  

This was sub unit one and this was sub unit two.  This is the UC Richmond Field Station in the light green.  This is the Zeneca/Cherokee site in the pink.  The perimeters are still the same under the current orders under DTSC.  A lot of what Michael was talking about relates to this building right here.  This is what we now understand to be the Beryllium Building also known as the Old Building 80 and also known as the B Building or the Be Building.  

When we were given access to the recent report that came out in April identifying the historical radiological uses at the site, we were reading in the sections having to do with the interviews of the prior employees.  And they would refer to it has the Be Building, not the "B" as in the letter "B," but the "B" as in the letters for Be, beryllium.  So they talked about work in the B Building.  Some of us might think ABC, but they were thinking "Be" as in beryllium.  So they talked shorthand.  And they said, "Yes, we worked in the B Building," and the B Building was    they would describe how it looked, the work they did in it. 

MR. DOTSON:  What year was it built? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  1951.

MS. PADGETT:  1951, says Michael.  And perhaps we have got some conflicts here because we will look at this here in a minute.  Here we have an aerial photo estimated 1949.  And maybe this isn't the Be Building up here.  But we think maybe it is.  And these are the Seaport housing here around the perimeter, finished in '51.  Okay.  And this is the attachment that went with the letter.  And we are going to come back to this document here in a few minutes.  And I know it is a little confusing for everyone to have the water up at the top and in the prior photos the water was at the bottom.  So this is south at the top and north at the bottom.

MR. DOTSON:  So prior to the buildings being identified was there any happening or using of beryllium prior to those buildings being built? 

MS. PADGETT:  We are going to talk about it.  We will answer the questions here in a few minutes.  Here is a larger aerial.  It doesn't really show you a lot.  I just wanted to give you an idea that    yes.  Is that enough?  Here is another aerial looking at it, and here is a building with kind of a larger    it is not a stack.  It is just a larger building.  We haven't identified what that building was used for.  This is another angle of it.  This is in the mid '60s.  There is another aerial. 

And here it is again up in this corner in the late '60s.  And here it is in 1964 or '75, up in this corner right here.  I put this up for you, again, so that you would see the layout of the property.  This is the Zeneca property.  I liken it to looking like a boot.  This is the toe of the boot, and this is the top of the boot.  This is a document from the Fortune Magazine on September 16th, 1960, and it shows some executives of Stauffer.  And they talk about this very    these very expensive shovels that they are digging with and how proud they are of this new research center that is being built here in Richmond and the alloys that they are developing, finding immediate application in critical rocket components like the nozzles for rocket engines and such.  I want to refer to this here in a few minutes. 

And here we have the phase one environmental site assessment for 2000.  This was a document that was prepared prior to going in and digging at the site.  And we aren't going to go through any of this information.  Just to tell you that these are paragraphs out of it.  They don't identify anything that you just saw back there on that Fortune Magazine article.  And they sure don't identify any beryllium.  And there isn't any uranium in here.  And we go on more with more history.  

This is pretty much the sum of it.  These are documents    these are pages out of that same document that identify the documents that were used to go through the history of the site.  And that is the extent of it.  That is all there was.  And then the phase two investigator.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  (Inaudible). 

MS. PADGETT:  This was Levine Fricke report for Zeneca back in 2000, before they went out and put a shovel in the dirt, or as they were putting shovels in the dirt.  Then there is the investigation report addendum, so here we have an investigation report in 2000, and here we have another one that is an addendum.  Yet within that document is a document we are sort of familiar with because it showed up again in DTSC documents which was an overlay of site history.  

And this is important because right here is Seaport Avenue.  And right up here we have got a building.  And you would expect that to be Building 80, right?  And the purpose of this map was to tell us all of the history of the site.  And this is a closeup of that building, and you see this map, back in 2000, identified that as Building 70, I know.  And we have got another one that is another Building 80.  

So we have the old Building 80 that is now on the maps as a Building 70, and we have a new building 80 that is on the maps as Building 80.  Okay.  And that, then    those maps helped them determine where they were going to do testing, sampling.  And what you don't see around this building is a lot of sample data.  

You see sample data gathered around this area.  And that relates to an area of concern, this A01 is area of concern, area one.  That is this area right here.  But this old Building 80, the Be Building, the B Building, was not a focus before they    as they were gathering samples in 1999 and figuring out areas that they needed to be concerned about.  It did not get examined.  

And these are tables that come from what we call the plant area, what we would know now as Lot Three, the upland area of Lot Three.  And we see the beryllium lines right here.  And what is interesting in some of these is that as the depths go down    this is one and a half feet.  It is kind of hard to read, one and a half feet.  This is three and a half feet.  If you go through the data you will see kind of a consistency in it being higher concentrations the lower you go.  

And here is more of it and more of it in the plant area.  And then here we have got the Remedial Investigation report, and what we are    what we have not evaluated yet and where I think we are headed is needing to go back and look at the original depth under the cap.  If everyone remembers, all of this is now buried under the 350,000 cubic yards.  

So at one foot out there, at the site where the Beryllium Building was is going to be right around the cap.  And trying to figure out what the original site depth is and going through these numbers and picking out what we have out there at original site depth probably needs to be reviewed.  And so we have got the information here.  And you see they did measure at 9 feet and 17 and a half feet and 1 foot, 3 and a half feet, 14 feet.  So the data is there.  It just needs to be reviewed.  

And this is a document from the old 2000 report.  And the reason I put this up here is that, interestingly, they went through and evaluated ecological screening criteria in their original review which has since been dropped as a requirement by DTSC, sadly.  Actually, it is really    it is too bad.  And you see a maximum concentration here of 57 micrograms per liter with the ecological screening criteria of 6.6, and that is out there in the Lot Three area.  

And here we have inorganics in the groundwater on Lot Three.  And I    this one is up here because you can see there are all these non detects here on this line.  And then right here on Monitor Well 11B or 11A and 11B you see it    it surfaces out of the blue.  These are directly south of the Beryllium Building, due south.  So it would just be good to have a review of it.  

And here under the Western Research Center you see non detects.  This is all north of the Beryllium Building.  So those other detects in the waters were south of the Beryllium Building, and these detects are north of the Beryllium Building.  And you wouldn't expect it in the water going north.  You would expect it in the water going south to the Bay.  

They put a work plan together to remediate the hot spots.  And I    they    during that remediation they did not have any knowledge, apparently, of this Beryllium Building and certainly not the uranium.  And something that Dorinda is going to talk about here in a few minutes relates to this most recent gamma scan that was done at the site.  

If everyone remembers, Cherokee and Zeneca paid to have individuals walk across the site.  You can see this pattern of walking across the site.  And this picked up, then, the gamma results as they did this pattern across.  And this area right here had a higher level than the surrounding areas.  So you see light green and then you see this dark green right here.  And it is better seen here where it is a little smoothed out.  There is a little dark green patch right here, a little dark green patch here, and more here.  And the Beryllium Building was right about here, and that was the reason that we put this together and, again, this is reversed.  This is the water at the top.  

Here is the Building 80 and here is that area that you just saw in darker green where the gamma scan showed it a little bit warmer than everything around it.  And this is the map that shows where they were going to go out and do some more sampling that Barbara just talked about.  And this is just a picture of the Beryllium Building again.  

And I just want to remind everyone what our mission is here.  As we look at the beryllium we want to be sure that we are looking at a comprehensive cleanup.  And before I pass this on, I want to say that I am floored.  I am just    I am still amazed every time I go back and look at that document, that here we are, five years into this process, and in May of 2008 we were informed that there was beryllium processing at this site.  

It is not in any document prior to this date.  Beryllium isn't anywhere.  It is not talked about.  It is not a concern.  It is just not an issue.  And so beryllium processing is a real surprise to us.  And it surfaced out of us looking at the uranium history.  And so this goes to Eric's point earlier, and he has been asking these questions as a property owner very nearby as we have all been impacted, what is the total story here.  When will we know that we have a full history about what actually happened out there.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you very much, Sherry.  I think that what we have learned at least is that the manner in which we are trying to ascertain the full history of this site is defective, that what we have in the historical review or radiological uses is not the kind of self assessment that would give us comfort.  And I would like to turn it over to Dorinda to cover some specifics.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Thank you, Michael.  I am going to give a summary of our comments, the CAG and Dade Moeller comments on the historical review radiological uses.  And it has already been pointed out and Sherry has just discussed again, the fact that the beryllium lab just came up in this report and that over time the history of the site seems to keep evolving, we asked in our comments that it be verified that all of the Stauffer and Zeneca records have been provided for review.  

The fact that the beryllium laboratory was identified in the report but there wasn't detail on the operations that went on there, for instance, whereas we will talk about and has already been touched on, we think it is likely that beryllium oxide was the initial material used at the laboratory but that we don't know that for sure.  

And we don't know what kind of processes    process temperatures were used.  And those things would all affect what residuals might be left behind.  We also    although it was discussed at the meeting on June 4th, the issue of the two Building 80s and the work that MacTech did to look at the second Building 80 for radiological surveys and sampling, we wanted to get some more clarification on that and whether that type of survey had been done when the original Building 80 or the beryllium lab was closed.  

The report didn't provide too much detail on that either.  We also    as Michelle had mentioned, we looked at the RDI to see what samples had been collected as part of the RI, but what we really think needs to happen is that if someone goes back to look at the all of the data, even back to 1999, as Sherry mentioned, there were samples collected then that the elevation of the original ground surface would have to be adjusted to look at the data, but we are wondering what that data would look like at the various steps.  What does the data really look like at the ground surface where it would have been when the beryllium lab was operating.  

So, again, the question is knowing now that it was a source for beryllium, has there been adequate characterization.  And we did request in the letter that the samples recently collected at the beryllium lab location be analyzed for beryllium as well in addition to the radiological parameters just to see, and I know Michelle mentioned that there has been a lot of beryllium data collected to date in the soil and that the feeling is these are at background levels.  But we are curious to know what the pattern looks like, is there a variation and would those additional samples at the lab location be higher than the previous samples that have been collected across the site, both in native and in non native material.  

As Sherry mentioned, there is a variation in    you know there is some down gradient monitor wells that are showing elevated beryllium concentrations.  And we would like to take a harder look at that as well.  Now, Barbara already mentioned that, you know, there is some question on the health risk screening levels, and Adrianne has done some looking into that, and she is going to comment on that a bit as well.

MS. LAPIERRE:  Unfortunately you don't really have too much to say right now.  In trying to understand the significance of this data we obviously did what you guys did.  We went to the CSLS document and noticed that there are two very different screening levels for beryllium, markedly different.  So for total beryllium, as Barbara mentioned, there is a residential screening level listed of 150 milligrams per kilogram.  

But then they have a number, a CSLS for beryllium oxide, and that number is 0.09 milligrams per kilogram.  So you have got more than three orders of magnitude difference according to OEHHA's CSLS document as to what would be protective of a residential receptor, whether you are looking at beryllium or beryllium oxide.  

So basically we have done, I think, Barbara, what you have done which is we have gone back to try to understand why such a big difference, whether the assumptions that went into those calculations, what is the basis for those assumptions, and, really, bottom line, what is the appropriate screening criteria to use at this site.  

And we don't have the answers yet.  We are in dialogue with OEHHA about that as well.  And hopefully by next month we have some clarity on what an appropriate health screening number for the beryllium would be.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you very much.  Now I think we can go to questions from everyone.

MR. ROBINSON:  Is DTSC still here?  Good.  Barbara, correct me if I am wrong on this.  Some of the slides up here showed a phase one initial site assessment, going to a phase two site assessment.  I think the purpose of a phase one is to    it is like a light search.  It is to determine historically what contaminants would be there, and then that directs the work in phase two; is that correct, Barbara?  

MS. COOK:  Yes.  And in this case the phase one and the phase two were done under the Water Board's direction.  But we also have to recognize    and this goes back to the history issue.  This was a manufacturing plant that operated for well over 100 years.  And I know that everybody would like to find every piece of information.  Dorinda, if you can find the soil testing, the temperatures of the furnace, maybe we can go talk to the operator because he is actually alive, and we can try to get that information.  But a lot of this information, a lot of this documentation doesn't exist anymore.  It just doesn't exist anymore.  

These operations existed in the 1960s.  That is over 40 years ago.  To track down the paperwork you are not going to find every single piece of paperwork.  And I know that you would like to understand what every single building did.  The Department asked for that, and we can put together the information based on what we have.  And we recognize that information keeps coming up that adds to it.  But, you know, nothing is going to be comprehensive.  And you are always going to find something because it operated for well over 100 years.  

MR. ROBINSON:  I guess my point was the phase one in a project    as a project proponent, in this case the seller of a property, it is a way of limiting liability.  That is the way I am looking at it.  That may be wrong.  I don't know.

MS. COOK:  There are two types of phase one.  A phase one is done by a seller of a property which provides the level of information that he wants to put out there, enough to be able to say that he provided information along that line.  And then there are phase ones that are done by people who want to buy the property and they get permission to buy that property.  So I am not sure if the phase one that was done under the Water Board's direction, if it was done by Stauffer or if it was done by somebody who wanted to buy the property.

MR. ROBINSON:  Zeneca.

MS. COOK:  So they would have done it based on the information that they get, what they have available to them.   

MR. ROBINSON:  Get or give? 

MS. COOK:  Well, what it comes down to is they usually hire an outside contractor and where they try to find out the information.  If you operated a facility for 100 years, do you have paperwork that goes back on what every    what all of the operations are, what all of the buildings were, what everybody did.  One of the things that has come out as part of this is to recognize they had two buildings that called Building 80.  And we were all mixing the buildings up.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I would just like to point out to the audience that one of the features of this ongoing story about what is happening at the Richmond site, at the Zeneca site, is that the CAG is actually in possession of more documents regarding radiological uses of that property than are present in the AEC/DOE Website.  We have discovered more than they have been able to find.  So this is one of    when we have a MARSSIM guidance review, that is supposed to be a curative measure, a self assessment in which the parties producing the document should state essentially all records have been turned over.  All former employees have been asked to cooperate.  This is everything.  

What we received is certainly not that.  Most of the novel information was brought to the surface from the interviews of former employees which then elicited a document production by Zeneca's legal representatives.  It is not the kind of self assessment that closes the matter.

MS. COOK:  May I ask one question?  Dorinda, you outlined comments today.  Are you providing more comprehensive comments on the rad assessment report?  Is the CAG providing more comprehensive comments?

DR. ESPOSITO:  We will provide more comments on the entire tone of the report, including the beryllium data in particular.  

MR. BLUM:  For me, when the CAG was begun and I joined it, the first order of business was to characterize the land.  Ultimately the goal of Cherokee Simeon is development.  And I am a business owner myself.  The property will get developed ultimately.  But it is not going to get developed soon if we keep finding things out by having to dig for it ourselves when we are told that we have all of the information.  

So as a member of the public, it does not give me confidence that we are being given everything that we could be given by the responsible parties.  And I am not aiming this at DTSC.  I think this goes mostly to the property owners that we want your help.  I want to see the property developed, but I will not watch it get developed knowing that there are huge unanswered questions and that there were uranium melting and beryllium that was kept from us somehow.  

I am not saying that anybody here knew about it specifically, but what we would like is you to help us get to the very bottom of exactly what happened out there so that all of us can move forward together so that you can develop your property and the community feels that it is done responsibly and that everybody's safety is protected.  That is the way I feel about it.

MS. WALLIS:  We are still in the period of the Toxics Committee update question and answer period.  I see a hand from Ms. Abbott and then from Mr. Thompson.

MS. ABBOTT:  Is this is towards    for Barbara.  Sherry said something to the effect that the DTSC requirements regarding screening for beryllium were dropped.  Are those going to be reinstituted given that they now have uncovered some information?

MS. PADGETT:  Let me clarify that.  That was ecological screening levels for Lots One, Two, and Three.  I am not sure that's what... 

MS. ABBOTT:  Yeah.  That is what I meant.  

MS. PADGETT:  If everyone remembers, we just went through a Human Health Risk Assessment for Lots One, Two, and Three.  And the CAG asked DTSC to talk to us about why the ecological screening levels were dropped from that risk assessment.  And what I showed was in the 2000 documents in the phase one and phase two 2000 documents they were looking at the ecological impacts to Lots One, Two, and Three, under Water Board purview.  And between the Water Board and DTSC, the ecological screening levels for the upland portions of Lots One, Two, and Three have been dropped. 

MS. ABBOTT:  So the question is will they be reinstituted now?  

MS. KING:  I will answer the question.  This is Michelle King.  I will answer the question to the best of my ability.  The beryllium ecological numbers that Sherry was referring to are for water discharging into the marsh.  So they are ecological criteria for protection of aquatic life.  We can definitely look into the No. 6.4 that was listed because I think right now we are not showing any screening criteria for ecological protection.  And we are pulling from published things like the Basin Plan and California Toxics, Common Sources of Ecological number.  So we will look to see where that former number was and if it is still appropriate to be using it or not.

MS. PADGETT:  Can I add a comment to that?  We have, right along this edge, right here, actually, it comes right along here, we have a biologically active permeable barrier that has been installed.  And it is about 20 feet high, 10 feet above ground, 10 feet below ground, give or take some.  And that is original ground level.  

And the point that I think Michelle just addressed is that she didn't answer the question about ecological risk factors for Lots One, Two, and Three.  That would be the upland area of the site.  What she talked about is where the upland area goes through the biologically active permeable barrier and becomes the ecologically sensitive marsh.  

So where DTSC has, for reasons that I am sure they will explain again, has decided that we will only look at the Human Health Risk Assessment factors for all of the upland portion.  We still have the ecologically sensitive marsh area.  And so the water that is contaminated with beryllium and the other contaminants that are coming off of the site are going through that biologically active permeable barrier or under it and out into the marsh, so it is a critical number as it moves from one area into another.

MR. DOTSON:  Some of the testing that has been done recently are showing levels of beryllium?  

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  Beryllium is going through that biologically active permeable barrier.  Yes.  

MR. DOTSON:  Are you testing on the other side of the barrier also?  

MS. PADGETT:  As far as I know there is not    there are no samples being taken in the marsh area.  There are samples being taken in the biologically active permeable barrier that would be on the north side in the middle of it and just south of it, but there are not samples being taken out in the marsh.

MS. WALLIS:  We had a hand from Mr. Thompson, and then I need to do a time check with the group.

MR. THOMPSON:  The comment I would like to make on this here, you know, before they built the projects, the government projects and things along that line, housing projects, that Field Station over there, the University Field Station acts as the same as the Livermore.  And lots of the war time experiments were carried on over there.  They even had one deal where they were testing some fog elements.  And who's to say that when they were testing that that they weren't using this beryllium in some of those tests in that to just to see how wide it would be active? 

MS. COOK:  Actually, I am a little confused.

MR. THOMPSON:  What I am getting at is you say you don't have a lot of information on the properties over there and what have you.  I am pretty sure at that time before they built those government housing over there in the Lawrence Livermore Lab used to be part of that over there and up in the University of California.  

MS. COOK:  Well, I was under the impression that the University of California did not purchase this property until 1950.  So that would have been prior    after. 

MR. THOMPSON:  They might not have owned it or anything along that line, but they carried on experiments over there.  

MS. COOK:  Is that the UC property or are you discussing the Stauffer/Zeneca property?  

MR. THOMPSON:  All of that property in there.  

MS. COOK:  The UC did not own that property at that point in time.  And we will have to go back and look at what operation activities were going on and who owned the property at that point in time.  You know, Lawrence Livermore, I don't think existed as an entity at that point in time either.  But we will go back and    because I don't have that information in there at this point in time    to go back to the question on the beryllium that you asked, I would like to point out that there are monitoring wells before you    before the permeable barrier wall within the permeable barrier wall and after the permeable barrier wall.  

So it is more    you want to collect those samples at the closest places where you are going to find them because once water gets into the marsh area then you have a lot more water and it is going to be a lot more diluted.  So it is more important to be able to collect it as close as where you think you are going to find it in groundwater to make sure you don't have a dilution problem. 

There would be ecological screening as it related to the discharge of groundwater into the marsh area, yes.  But    as Sherry pointed out, that I would make this comment, Lots One, Two, and Three do not have habitat attached to them that the Department believes that has to be assessed as part of that.  There is no habitat.  So we are not required to do an ecological assessment unless habitat is going to be created.

MS. ABBOTT:  Barbara, I am sort of getting this, I think.  In the map that Treadwell & Rollo provided where Building 80 is identified and Building 86, 87 where there is increased gamma exposure measurements, there is some monitoring of groundwater in that vicinity; is that correct?  

MS. COOK:  Yes.  And can I ask    let me point out one other thing.  Beryllium is not a radiological compound.  So gamma evaluation would not have picked it up unless something new has happened here.

MS. ABBOTT:  Thank you.  

MS. COOK:  They are two different measurements.

MS. ABBOTT:  That is fine.  I got that.

MS. COOK:  All right.

MS. ABBOTT:  My question is there are    you are testing for various contaminants in the vicinity of Building 80.  But you have less test wells or test monitoring around that building than around some of the other buildings.  Is there a possibility that you could test for beryllium there near where Building B or Building 80 was?

MS. COOK:  Well, I think I need to go back and figure out what it is.  I need to figure out what sampling    are you looking    let me ask this clarifying question.  Are you looking at soil sampling or groundwater sampling? 

MS. ABBOTT:  Maybe both. 

MS. COOK:  Let me see what samples have already been collected and what samples can be analyzed. 

MS. ABBOTT:  Before you do that, what I saw on one of the other slides showed where the test    I don't know what they are called, I am sorry, sample areas, wherever you are taking the samples, to not actually be close to Building 80.  They were actually, I don't know which direction they are in.  But they are not right around where this Building 80 was. 

MS. COOK:  And I will also point out that they may actually have been right in the middle of Building 80.  So because Building 80 no longer exists and you don't have a building foundation to do it, it is kind of    people have used adjustment of where it is.  So it is whether or not    you know, how close it is.  And every effort was made to make these samples in areas where we believe there was a reason to look for them. 

MS. ABBOTT:  But with overlays from historical photographs... 

MS. COOK:  Still think of it this way.  Overlays of a photograph, you still have to have a point of reference where you are connecting it to.  And, you know, the surveying line is called a benchmark.  So you are looking at where that is, what the map scales are, and you still have some, you know, ten, fifteen feet this way, and ten, fifteen feet that way.  So it is done as close as possible, but the best effort that is there.  

MS. WALLIS:  I am sorry.  I need to interject.  We are at adjournment time, so I need some direction from the CAG about extending the official time of the meeting for this topic and for the three topics on the agenda that remain.  Excuse me, Ms. Abbott for the interruption.

MR. ROBINSON:  Thank you, Kay.  I would like to make a motion that we go fifteen minutes over.  Do I hear a second? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Second.

MR. ROBINSON:  All in favor?  Any opposed? 

MS. WALLIS:  I will ask you to conclude your question, Ms. Abbott, and then I was directed to go to Ms. Shipman and then take a question, at least one from the audience. 

MS. ABBOTT:  Are you testing for beryllium in the    I don't know, upland area? 

MS. COOK:  In wells, monitoring wells, yes. 

MS. ABBOTT:  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Shipman had a comment.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Barbara, I just wanted to acknowledge your comment about historical processes.  I think that the issue there is that for the four historical radiological processes in Section 7 of the report there is a description of those.  And then under the discussion of potential site contamination there is a discussion of the precautions that were taken at the beryllium lab to prevent releases.  So just the reader has no sense of what the overall processes were, and, you know, whether we have detail on exactly what they were, there is just    and maybe it doesn't belong in this report.  Maybe it belongs somewhere else.  But that was really the point there.

MS. WALLIS:  I see Dr. King's hand, and also I see Mr. Weiner has a comment.  Is that a direct response?  

MS. KING:  Yeah.  It is related to this topic.  Just so people are aware, my understanding from a discussion with Bill Marsh is that the electron beam furnace letter that he had written on June 30th, 2006 actually did discuss or at least mention beryllium oxide melting in relation to electron beam furnaces.  So it does go back a couple of years.

MS. WALLIS:  Mr. Weiner? 

MR. WEINER:  I am not as expert as I would like to be in the radiological history report that's been given.  My understanding is that this information was not previously given by Zeneca Stauffer, any of the predecessor entities, and we now have some information.  My question is to the Department.  Because Federal EPA has something called Section 3013 authority, which is to ask people for information under RCRA, and 104E under CIRCLA.  I am assuming the Department has some of that 1031 authority to ask questions.  I don't know if that is what the Department used in getting this radiological report.  I don't know that Zeneca provided this information under penalty of perjury.  

What I am concerned about is this, that as was said earlier, if a seller is doing a, quote, phase one    and, frankly, I don't think that is ever called a phase one.  It is called a sales document.  A seller says what they want to say.  And to some extent it is buyer beware.  The process that has been used here is one which may or may not have gotten all of the information about the historical uses of the site.  

It may be that Cherokee Simeon Ventures was defrauded, that they weren't given the right information.  They may not be in a position to go back and show that or prove that or it may be irrelevant to them and not worth it at this point.  But what I am concerned about is whether we have all of the information and whether the Department has used all of its awesome authority to require that Zeneca and its predecessors produce all documents.  I know that to some extent there has been more than that, because when you make a document request in an official way you don't always get to talk to former employees, and here we did more.  We did talk to some former employees.  

In that sense I think that is terrific, but what I am hearing from Michael Esposito is that we are finding information that wasn't provided.  And there is something that is off putting about that and concerning because if the people who have the documents or should have the documents of 100 years of operation don't, and they are not out to find it in the same way that the CAG is, we have got a problem in terms of the full investigation of the site.  And it is one which I would hope that the Department in a legal basis could take up directly with Zeneca if that is the case.  

I am not making allegations here.  I am talking about a concern that if we don't have that full information and even the current owner of the site doesn't have it that we have to get it.  And I am wondering whether the process that we went through with Zeneca's attorney    we never got to see Zeneca, you may remember    was sufficient and whether the Department has the authority and the ability to get that. 

MS. COOK:  I don't know if you want to respond or if you have run out of time.

MS. WALLIS:  We have run out of time. 

MS. COOK:  She governors the class.  

MR. ROBINSON:  We have still got seven minutes to go.

MS. WALLIS:  For the rest of the meeting.  So at your discretion, Mr. Chair.  

MS. COOK:  Or else I am going to do it in another way and he may regret this.  I would like to remind the legal offices that I think that all of you kind of invoke the "let's get rid of all documents after seven years."  You know, so, you know, so it is very difficult.  When I do a lot of information request letters I get a lot of information.  And then after a while attorneys recognize that sometimes that information kind of hurts, so they invoke what is known as record retention and leave out a lot of stuff.  But the issue is we will    yes, we asked for this information.  What was asked is that they follow the California Public Health requirements as it relates to this.  I am anxiously awaiting the information here.  I hope that if the CAG feels that there is information that is not brought forward that you itemize what that information is, where that information is provided, because I    I will go back and ask my own legal attorney, but since you are doing pro bono work for them can I write them an information request and order them to give it to me, the CAG, if they feel that they have information that I don't have?  

So, you know, the issue is    I know that is not the issue.  But I would like to have a comprehensive issue, a comprehensive listing.  100 years is a long time.  I think that people made their best effort to go and get information.  I know that they tracked down a lot of people that used to work there.  They have interviewed these people.  They continue to do follow up calls to them based on inquiries that are made.  And if you have information we are asking that you provide that information so that we can do that.  

You know, I don't think somebody is maliciously not providing us documents.  It is just there is a lot of documents that we just don't have.  And, you know, I hope that your letter itemizes that.  

MR. WEINER:  I will follow up with legal. 

MR. DOTSON:  Is it my turn?

MR. ROBINSON:  The chair recognizes... 

MR. DOTSON:  I think that probably 100 years is a significant issue, and we probably won't find a lot of information, but I think some of the issues are in the ground.  And I think with a proper assessment of the site most of the things that are present will be discovered.  So    which means that the assessment that was done in the past was not a good effective assessment of what is actually on the site at this point at various levels, various depths and also in the water.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Vice Chair.  Does this conclude the Tox Com portion of the agenda?  Dr. Esposito?

DR. ESPOSITO:  Rather than going back 100 years, I would like to tell you that the secret method that the Tox Com used to find out of this information is to simply pair up Stauffer Metals of Richmond and the name of individuals that worked there, and this is how we produced all of the documents we have.  It doesn't require a lot of expertise.  It just requires about a half hour of work.

MS. WALLIS:  If that concludes the Tox Com report, Dr. Esposito? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  It does. 

MS. WALLIS:  Then we move on to the public comment period.  Do I see any hands from the audience?  Yes.  

MS. BEGIN:  Claudette Begin from CUE, the clerical union representing workers at Richmond Field Station.  It seems that some of the information is coming from people who have worked for Stauffer or companies right in this area.  And it seems to me that I don't know why this couldn't be done, is to put out some kind of PSA asking for people to come forward on the type of work that might have involved toxic materials or if they lived, hearing about the testing that can be done on people that might have been impacted by this.  It seems like residents of Seaport, you know, this whole area, those people should be    now there should be public service announcements going out asking for people to come forward.  Somehow could that be effective?  I am remembering that JoAnne was a previous member of the CAG.  This was a concern of hers, and, of course, Ethel's as well.  And she talked about defense work that was being done and how that impacted the people who lived next door and the children were playing in the water and all of this.  

So how is information that is resident in the population who are still alive today for what happened in the last 50 years, not 100 years.  It seems to me that the most toxic stuff is more recent than the older stuff.  And the other thing is that Joan would have asked this, but she is not in the room.  It seems that the Levine Fricke consultants have been less than thorough, so is there a consideration that perhaps other consultants should be used? 

MS. COOK:  I would like to    the first question, you know, I remember that when the California Department of Public Health was doing their initial health assessment evaluations they did try to reach out to get information from people and they did go out and meet with people.  

MS. BEGIN:  You are talking about Richmond Field Station.  I am talking about the greater area. 

MS. COOK:  They went through the Richmond Field Stations, they went through Zeneca and they worked with Ethel and anyone who could help them try to find people that lived at the Seaport Village.  So I think a lot of those types of outreaches have occurred.  I don't know if    maybe next month when the public health group is here we can ask what type of outreach they did and they were able to gather.

MS. WALLIS:  Other questions or comments for the public comment period?  We have reached 9:15, which was the agreed upon extension for the meeting.  And we have three or two more agenda items, Executive Committees, committee reports and then the final wrap up.  Mr. Chair?  

MR. ROBINSON:  I would like to make a motion to extent it another ten minutes.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Motion passes.  

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  So we'll move on then to the committee reports and that goes back you to.

MR. ROBINSON:  I'll keep this brief.  Well, Sherry, the first one is Zeneca/Cherokee technical consultants status. 

MS. PADGETT:  We have support from Paul Hastings Law in the form of Sanjay Ranchod.  He is here tonight.  He is usually back in Atlanta.  And we are really glad to see him.  Maybe, Sanjay, you could tell us where the contract is for the funding. 

MR. RANCHOD:  I will just shout.  An amended MOA between Cherokee and DTSC has been executed.  And then pursuant to that we have drafted an amended technical services contract between the CAG and Treadwell & Rollo and Cherokee.  And that has been sent to Cherokee for review.  So the status is there is a draft, and we are expecting a response from Cherokee.  

MS. PADGETT:  So the very positive news here is that we have an executed contract between DTSC and Cherokee for funding through March of 2009.  Am I correct?  

MR. RANCHOD:  That is right.

MS. PADGETT:  Yes, March 2009.  And there was a lot of negotiation that went on there about what areas would and wouldn't be funded.  But in the end we do have an agreement.  And now we have a contract.  The final step is to do the housekeeping to ensure that our consultants can send bills to Cherokee and have them be paid.  And I want to, again, thank you, Sanjay, here in person for all of the    all of the hard work you have done in support of the CAG and the community in getting these contracts written, rewritten, revised.  

For those of you who weren't involved in it firsthand, this has taken a lot of hours, many, many, many hours.  And Paul Hastings Law has volunteered its time and Sanjay has been there to support us late at night, on weekends, at all hours.  And we really appreciate the time that the law firm has given us.

MR. RANCHOD:  You are most welcome.  And Sherry put a tremendous amount of time into that effort.  We are pleased that we have an agreement now and everyone knows what the funding status is and we can move ahead with the work.  

MR. ROBINSON:  The second item is the follow up on the summary of violations letter.  I have a call in to Colleen Hecht, the attorney for DTSC.  And she hasn't been able to return my call yet, but I anticipate I will be able to discuss that with her in the next meeting.

MS. PADGETT:  Did we review for everyone what that is?  Very briefly, the summary of violations, DTSC issued a summary of violations on June 29th, 2007 to the University of California, and they issued a summary of violations to Zeneca for activities related to the period approximately 2001 through 2003 for violations that they    for violations.  Some of the violations include the movement of toxic soil from one property to another, in other words, creating a hazardous waste facility without license.  

And there are other items in those summary of violations that are being reviewed.  And our request is that any fines come to our area of the Richmond Southeast Shoreline area to the extent allowed by regulation.

MR. ROBINSON:  The last item is the outreach to UC.  That is    it has been an ongoing topic with the CAG.  To that end I contacted someone who is here in the audience tonight, Doreen Moreno from UC.  And there were a couple of things that I wanted to reiterate.  First of all, UC is a member of the community with a community board and a very important part of the community.  We would like to welcome UC to our meetings.  We wanted to keep the lines of communication open in a consistent and dependable way and discuss the possibility of periodic presentations to the CAG with the opportunity for us to hear the UC perspective and to have questions answered.  

So we are inviting UC to be part of the agenda.  And from now, until Diane leaves DTSC, I will be working with her toward that end and then beyond with whoever replaces Diane.  We wanted to explore ideas for communicating with the CAG on the important topics that are at hand for the UC Richmond Field Station and to do that in any form in any fashion possible.  We think that open lines of communication are going to be better than no communication at all.  With that... 

MS. PADGETT:  This is an announcement about the Toxics Committee meeting, which is next Thursday.  It is right over here in the Shimada Room.  It is 7:00 to 9:00 o'clock.  One of the items that will be on the agenda is a draft of the Toxics Committee letter on environmental justice.  We are going to be reviewing that letter and we invite any member of the public and especially the Community Advisory Group to come and join us.

MR. ROBINSON:  And that concludes our meeting tonight.  Shall we table the approval of the minutes?  

MR. BLUM:  I move approval.

MR. DOTSON:  Second.  

MS. GRAVES:  I handed out hard copies to people who don't have email, members of the CAG.  So a motion to approve the minutes.  Is there a second?  Seconded.  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Okay.  Okay.  Motion passes.  So the minutes from our last meeting are approved.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you all.  Next meeting is in August, second Thursday of the month, same time in the same location.  Good night.  

(The meeting was adjourned.)
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